

Common Council Regular Meeting Tuesday, December 17, 2024 at 5:30 PM City Hall, 100 E Fountain St, Dodgeville, WI 53533

## **MINUTES**

#### I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by Mayor Hottmann. PRESENT: Roxanne Reynolds-Lair, Shaun Sersch, Tom DeVoss, Jeff Weber, Dan Meuer, Jerry Johnson, Julie Johnson-Solberg, Larry Tremelling

### I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

### II. CONSENT AGENDA

Motion by DeVoss, second by Johnson to approve the following consent agenda items. Voice vote. Motion carried 8-0.

- 1. Approval of Minutes from December 3, 2024.
- 2. Approval of Claims from December 17, 2024.General = \$233,967.40, Water = \$215,839.24, Sewer = \$59,923.53, Total = \$509,730.17

## **III. PUBLIC COMMENT**

Kyle Levetzow gave an update on Ice Wolves. The organization was disappointed to see the \$1M reallocated to the armory building. Open skate has been successful so far this year. There are tournaments coming up in January/February. Council members suggested more planning for improvements for the pavilion so they have a better understanding on what needs to happen at the facility for future budget considerations.

### IV. REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS

- 3. Recreation Report New Recreation Director, Megan James, introduced herself and provided an update to Council on her activities since beginning as rec director.
- 4. Library Report Library Director Carrie Portz was present to review the library building project. The contract with the State is expected any day now. They library is working to lock down their temporary site and getting an estimate for moving services to see if it's viable. Coming up, a fundraising campaign and community conversation.

- 5. Clerk/Treasurer Report Aulik wanted to remind everyone that City Hall is Closed December 24th & 25th for Christmas and December 31st and January 1st for New Year's. Tax payments dated 12-31 and received in the dropbox or mail after the new year will be posted with a December 31st date.
- Mayor Report Mayor Hottmann reiterated on working a temp site for library.
   Vibrant spaces grant was submitted and they expect to hear back in March.
   The mayor read a thank you note for donating to the Silk Road Conference.

# V. NEW BUSINESS

- 7. Discussion and possible action to approve a contract with TNT Gymnastics LLC. Rec Director James stated that TNT Gymnastics asked to run a winter gymnastics program. The City will receive \$5/participant. This is a trial and if it works out, TNT may do additional programming. Motion by DeVoss, second by Johnson-Solberg to approve a contract with TNT Gymnastics, LLC. Voice vote. Motion carried 8-0.
- 8. Discussion and possible action on HGA 's Architectural and Engineering Services Proposal for Library Building Project. Director Portz stated this proposal will lead to the contract with HGA. This includes options for engineering, landscape architecture design, tech engineering, and interior design support. The Library Building Committee elected to go with the options with the timeline needed to accomplish the project. The Library Board has already approved this proposal. Motion by Reynolds-Lair, second by DeVoss to approve HGA's Architectural and Engineering Services Proposal for Library Building Project. Roll call vote. Motion carried 8-0.
- 9. Discussion and possible action to authorize Library Building Committee to make certain project decisions without Council approval. Mayor Hottmann stated that this came about as there was some concern about keeping the project moving along. These items are not large dollar amounts and fit within the purchasing policy. Discussed as a good protocol would be to run most items by Attorney Hagen to move forward consulting the DPW as needed. Motion by DeVoss, second by Weber to authorize the Library Building Committee to make certain project decisions without Council approval. Voice vote. Motion carried 8-0.
- 10. Discussion and possible action to approve Ordinance 2024-05: An ordinance to creation Section 12.12(a)(4) of the Municipal Code of the City of Dodgeville, Iowa County, Wisconsin, relating to the Annual Term for Mobile Food Vending Permits. Motion by Meuer, second by Johnson to approve Ordinance 2024-05: Creating Section 12.13(a)(4) of the Municipal Code

related to the Annual Term for Mobile Food Vending Permits. Roll call vote. Motion carried 8-0.

- 11. Discussion and possible action to set fees for the new "Food Truck Vendor Permit" and "Special Event License" and to approve the 2025 Fee Schedule. Aulik reviewed various license changes with the update of Chapter 12. Newly created permits/licenses are a "Food Truck Vendor Permit" and "Special Event License". The Ordinance Committee recommended a fee of \$200/annually or \$20/day. Additional changes were to building inspection, cemetery and pool fees. Motion by Johnson, second by Weber to approve the 2025 Fee Schedule as written. Roll call vote. Motion carried 8-0.
- 12. Consideration of a recommendation from the Finance Committee to obligate the remaining American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds must be obligated by year end 2024 and spent by 2026. Motion by Meuer, second by Johnson to obligate the remaining ARPA Funds as presented and remaining funds be put towards the plow truck. Roll call vote. Motion carried 8-0.
- 13. Discussion and possible action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement by and between the City of Dodgeville and Town of Dodgeville to Create A Joint Room Tax Commission and Tourism Zone. Mayor Hottmann reviewed this project with the Town of Dodgeville. There will be 6 members: 2 from the City, 2 from the Town and 2 from the hotel industry. Motion by Weber, second by DeVoss to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Dodgeville to create a Joint Room Tax Commission and Tourism Zone. Roll call vote. Motion carried 8-0.
- 14. Discussion and possible action to approve Ordinance 2024-06: An Ordinance to Amend Section 3.13 of the Municipal Code of the City of Dodgeville, Iowa County, WI relating to Room Tax. Motion by Johnson, second by Weber to approve Ordinance 2024-06: Amending Section 3.13 of the Municipal Code related to Room Tax. Roll call vote. Motion carried 8-0.
- 15. Discussion and possible action to approve a letter engagement with Johnson Block for year end 2024 accounting services. Motion by Meuer, , second by Reynolds-Lair to approve a letter of engagement with Johnson Block for year end 2024 accounting services. Voice vote. Motion carried 8-0.
- 16. Discussion and possible action to accept a proposal from Foster & Foster Consulting
  Actuaries, Inc (formerly Key Benefit Concepts) for a multi-year actuarily study related to Other

Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability. Motion by DeVoss, second by Johnson-Solberg to accept a proposal from Foster & Foster Consulting Actuaries, Inc for a 4-year actuarily study related to OPEB liability. Voice vote. Motion carried 8-0.

17. Discussion and possible action to approve a Letter of Engagement with Johnson Block & Company for audit services for Tax Incremental District 3. Motion by DeVoss, second by Meuer to approve a letter of engagement with Johnson Block for TID 3 Audit Services. Voice vote. Motion carried 8-0.

# **VI. OLD BUSINESS**

18. Discussion and possible action to approve an agreement with Community Development Alternatives Inc for closeout services related to the relocation of households in 2019-2020. Aulik stated that Dale Klemme was not available to address Council at this meeting but provided additional emails regarding the conversation he had with the former mayor. Motion by Meuer to approve the agreement for \$4,500, second by Johnson. Roll call vote. Motion carried 8-0.

### VII. ANY OTHER BUSINESS AS ALLOWED BY LAW

None.

## VIII. ADJOURN

19. *Motion to Adjourn.* Motion by Weber, second by Johnson-Solberg to adjourn the meeting. Voice vote. Motion carried 8-0.